
Fishtown
As Virginia’s population grew, so did its reliance on fish 
from the Potomac River as a dietary staple. In 1813, the City 
authorities passed a law designating the county wharf at the 
foot of Oronoco Street as the official place for landing fish. 
Soon, a collection of small wooden shacks and stalls sprang 
up and became known as “Fishtown.” Many of the dwellings 
were temporary, dismantled at the end of each fishing 
season. As the fish trade continued to grow, so did Fishtown. 
By the 1850s, the neighborhood of Fishtown included the 
area from Princess to Oronoco Streets and from Union Street 
to the river.

For Alexandria’s free African American and enslaved 
community, the fishing season at Fishtown was a time of hard 
work and, for some, financial reward. Around 600 African 
American workers were employed in counting, beheading 
and gutting, cleaning, and salting fish. The prepared fish, now 
preserved by salt, was then packed in barrels for transport.

Plan of the Town of Alexandria, Maskell Ewing, 1845. Note the label “Fish Whf” outlined in red at the  
top of the map.
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Fish were cut and washed by “cleaners,” usually a small team of African American women.
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During the Civil War, the Union troops commandeered 
the buildings in Fishtown, using them for storage or 
dismantling them for fuel. After the Civil War, Virginia 
failed to pass laws to protect the fish population in the 
Potomac River, which resulted in overfishing. Fishtown as 
a commercial area declined but grew as a residential area, 
attracting newly freed African American people to it and 
neighboring areas during and immediately after the Civil 
War. People of color who escaped slavery from Petersburg, 
Virginia, settled nearby, and referred to the area as 
“Petersburg,” now known as “The Berg.”

“The change which early March comes 
over the waterside of this city, ranging 

between Princess and Oronoco streets… 
From a quiet, almost deserted suburb, 

Fishtown springs, in a few days, to be a 
mart, full of business and fish.”

Alexandria Gazette, 19, April 1860

Created by the Alexandria African American Heritage Trail Committee, 
Alexandria Archaeology, and the Alexandria Black History Museum.

Fish Wharf


